Question 1:
In order to develop the skill mix required to support the PWS objectives as well as completing the RFP Attachment 12 Price Exhibits, we request the following information and clarifications.
In Attachment 12, Exhibit B, the instructions state:

1.  The Offeror must provide fully burdened labor rates for every labor category proposed, both On (DOE) Site and Off (SP) Site, and for every site, since the DOE does not know in advance which categories will be required for which site(s).  Therefore submission of TWO separate Exhibit B’s for each site proposed is required, one for On DOE Site and one for Off DOE Site.

2.  Fully burdened rates for each labor category proposed, for each of the ten components of the period of performance are required.

3.  See Technical Exhibit TE-2-1, Mission Statements by Organization, for the list of sites to be proposed:  DOE HQ (including NNSA/EIA) is in the first section and 16 field sites in the second (OSTI is at Oak Ridge, TN, as is the Oak Ridge Operations Office).

In reviewing the information provided in TE 2-1 as well as the additional information and directions concerning these sites in TE 3-1 and TE 2-2 and TE 6-1 we are unable to determine the appropriate methodology for completing Exhibit B for the following reasons:
While TE 2-1 lists the Program and Staff offices the SP will support, TE 2-2 provides additional information that identifies the various specific geographic locations for the program and staff offices.  In addition, TE 6-1 identifies specific Government Furnished facilities the SP will utilize to support the PWS objectives.

In order to allocate the LOE hours specified in TE 3-1:  Historical FY03 Workload Estimate by Activity across the geographic location listed in TE 2-2 we would need to have the LOE hours in TE 3-1 for the HQ Program and Staff Offices further decomposed by specific geographic location.  A specific example follows of our interpretation of the requirements:  a)  TE 3-1 identifies 15,840 hours LOE allocated to the RW office in support of PWS 3.2.1, Application Development and Software Engineering.  We understand that these hours are to be allocated across a skill mix developed by bidders as part of the estimates in Exhibit B; b)  TE 6-1 lists government furnished office space in both Washington, DC and Las Vegas, NV.  Our interpretation of this data indicates that the government is providing office space for approximately 30 staff in Las Vegas and an additional 15 staff in DC.
Without more specific guidance in the RFP to direct our efforts or any plan for pre-proposal due diligence we are unable to determine how this LOE, as well as the LOE for the other offices and sites, should be allocated across multiple geographic locations according to the requirements of Exhibit B.  We believe that an attempt by a non-incumbent bidder to complete Exhibit B without that additional information could potentially have a profound negative affect on the evaluation score.  In order to facilitate this effort, will the Government provide the following information? 
1.  Identify the current skill mix breakdown by site or LOE by geographic location.

2.  Identify by geographic location the current Tier 1 & 2 operations support services recipients.

3.  Please clarify the information in TE 6-1, Government Furnished Facilities.  We are unsure how to interpret the data provided for the various site and program offices.  For example, it appears that large individual offices are offered to the SP at the CIO facility.  Please clarify if the information in this exhibit reflects individual or cumulative office space available to the SP in the facilities identified.

4.  Please clarify the requirement to respond in Section L, Subcriterion 1B, to PWS Section 5 and the section L paragraph.  We are unable to find a PWS Section 5 and the reference to Section L requirements appears circular.
5.  Please clarify the requirement in SOW C2(h)(1) for submitting a Quality Control Plan in the proposal.  Although this requirement is not identified in Section L, is this requirement included in the page count for Volume II?

6.  As noted on page 166, Sub-paragraph 6 of the RFP, the government reserves the right to make multiple awards.  We request the removal of this clause from the solicitation.  The opportunity for any contractor to introduce process improvements or efficiencies would be significantly reduced if this option is exercised.  In addition, multiple awards would make any business case developed on the total LOE effort and service delivery model essentially invalid.

7.  Would the government please clarify how the Attachment 12 exhibits will be used in conjunction with the price proposal evaluation criteria for Criterion 1 – Price Reasonableness, Criterion 2 – Price Realism and Criterion 3 – Price Risk/Ability to Perform?

8.  In order to enhance our understanding of the current environment and enable our team to propose appropriate, informed solutions tailored to the specific challenge, would the government consider allowing interested contractors planned site visits and due diligence activities with an extension of proposal due date until 90 days after completion of due diligence.

Response: 
1.  The current skill mix breakdown will not be provided.  The historical LOE has been provided by geographical location.  It is up to each offeror to determine the appropriate skill mix, LOE, location, and all other elements of how they propose to accomplish this effort.
2.  This information will not be provided; see discussion above.

3.  The information provided in TE 6-1 identifies those facilities currently in use by those personnel and equipment addressed by the PWS.  There is no requirement that Offerors use these facilities.  

4.  The reference to PWS Section 5 was inadvertently left in the solicitation; the reference should be to clause C.2, General Management Requirements in Support of the Performance Work Statement.  The Offeror is advised that the technical approach required at subcriterion 1B is expected to address information and requirements set forth throughout technical criteria 1 through 3 in the referenced provision.
5.  Yes; please see provision L.27, subparagraph (c)(1)(a) and provision M.4(a)(1)(a).  
6.  No, the referenced provision will not be removed from the RFP; see also provision L.21.
7.  No, this is already discussed in provision M.4

8.  No site visits or RFP amendments are planned.

Question 2:
This contract is being released as a Time and Material ID/IQ contract.  It is our assessment that the RFP does not meet the requirements of the FAR in the following areas.  There is no minimum guarantee addressed in the RFP.  FAR 16.504(1)(a) requires the Government to order and the contractor to furnish at least a stated minimum quantity of supplies or services.  Additionally, FAR 16.504(1)(b) requires that to ensure that the contract is binding, the minimum quantity must be more than a nominal quantity, but it should not exceed the amount that the Government is fairly certain to order.  Therefore, we request that the government establish a minimum guarantee of at least $25 million for this contract.
Response:
The RFP was released anticipating the award of an ID/IQ contract.  The minimum guaranty is anticipated to equal the cost of the phase-in period as identified in clause B.1, Item 1.  The RFP will be amended to clarify this expectation by replacing the language in clause I.18.
Question 3:
FAR 16.504(2) states “Contracting officers may use an indefinite-quantity contract when the Government cannot predetermine, above a specified minimum, the precise quantities of supplies or services that the Government will require during the contract period, and it is inadvisable for the Government to commit itself for more than a minimum quantity.  The contracting officer should use an indefinite-quantity contract only when a recurring need is anticipated.”  We believe that the RFP does not meet the criteria.  Since government employees are currently performing the work, there is a definite requirement for the services covered in the RFP.  Therefore, we request that the Government change the contract type from ID/IQ to either FPIF or FFP.

Answer:  The contract type will not change; however, offerors may submit alternate proposals.
Question 4:
We also request that the government reconsider the proposed contract type for the following reason.  Under an ID/IQ contract, there is no requirement by the agency to order all of the services covered in the RFP.  If one part of the agency decided not to use the contract, there is no recourse for the contractor.  Therefore, please also change the contract type a requirements contract.  FAR 16.504(a) states “A requirements contract provides for the filling all actual purchase requirements of designated Government activities for supplies or services during a specified contract period, with deliveries or performance to be scheduled by placing orders with the contractor.”  This will ensure that all of the work anticipated under this RFP be performed by the awarded Contractor.  The contractor is also protected if the agency decides to move work out from under this vehicle.
Answer:  See the answer to question 3.
Question 5:
PWS Section C.3.1.2, Strategic Planning, page 26; PWS C.3.1.4, Capital Planning and Investment Control, page 27; PWS Section C.3.1.5, Resource Management, page 27; PWS Section C.3.1.6, Procurement Actions, page 27; PWS Section C.3.3, Information Technology Operations Support, page 30 (related to testing and making recommendations for new hardware only); RFP Section I.6, 952.209-72, Organizational Conflicts of Interest (JUL 1997), pages 112 and 113; RFP Section K.14, 952.209-8, Organizational Conflicts of Interest – Disclosure (JUN 1997); and RFP Section L, pages 161 to 188:

a.  Please confirm that these PWS five sections are the total number of performance requirements that could create an actual or perceived organizational conflict of interest.  If there are others, please identify them.

b.  The RFP does not require that an OCI mitigation plan be submitted with the proposal, but Section K.14 requires a statement be provided concerning OCI from the apparent successful offeror.  FAR Section 9.504 suggests that OCI issues should be identified and evaluated as early in the acquisition process as possible.  After a significant amount of bid and proposal costs are incurred it is not fair for any offeror to discover that he cannot be awarded a contract because of an actual or perceived OCI issue.  Would the Contracting Officer consider one-to-one exchanges before the intent to bid notices to resolve any OCI issues?

Answer:  It is incumbent on each offeror to make its own determination on whether or not there are requirements that could create organizational conflicts of interest.  Any offeror concerned with disclosing potential conflicts or providing mitigation or avoidance plans may provide that information in their Volume I, Offer and Other Documents, submission.  The agency does not anticipate holding discussions on this topic prior to receipt of proposals.

Question 6:
PWS Section C.3.1, Information Technology Management, Performance Measures Table, page 28; PWS Section 3.2, Systems Development and Engineering, Performance Measures Table, page 29; PWS Section 3.3, Information Technology Operations Support, Performance Measures Table, page 35; PWS Section 3.4 , Cyber Security, Performance Measures Table, page 37; and  Technical Exhibit 3-2, Performance Requirements Summary, page 3-2-1.
a.   For the seven IT Management responsibilities and two Systems Development and Engineering responsibilities, the performance measurements are vague both in the PWS and the Technical Exhibit.  For the IT Operations Support and Cyber Security, the performance measures in the Technical Exhibit are clearer than in the PWS, but in some cases appear to contradict one another.  For example, for IT Operations Support, there is a 100% quality expectation for completeness, but no corresponding item entitled “completeness: in the Technical Exhibit for either Tier 1 or Tier 2 support levels.  Please clarify this and define which performance measures apply to the PWS services.
b.  If both performance measures apply, does one set have precedence over another, and if so, which one has precedence?

Answer:  Please refer to the note to the Performance Measure Tables in the PWS; the measures identified in Technical Exhibit 3-2 take precedence.
Question 7:
RFP Section E.2, Acceptance:  How will the Contracting Officer accept all work, and how soon after deliveries will that acceptance occur?

Answer:  See clauses G.6 and G.7; acceptance criteria will be fully defined in each task.
Question 8:
RFP Section G.3, Voucher Format, page 74; RFP Section G.4, Billing Instructions (APR 2004), pages 74 and 75; RFP Section G.5, Types of Task Order, page 76; and RFP Section I.1, FAR 542.232-7, Payments under Time-and-Materials and Labor-Hour Contracts (DEC 2002), page 105.  How often can the contractor invoice for Fixed Rate, Firm Fixed Price and Fixed Price Incentive Task Orders, i.e., monthly for labor and related, twice monthly when there are cost reimbursable ODC?

Answer:  The standard invoicing frequency is monthly; under firm fixed price and fixed price incentive fee task orders, a delivery would have to occur during the month for an invoice to be submitted.
